Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (“IDA”)

Agenda
February 26,2026 at 6:15 p.m.

1. Board Roll Call/Call to Order

1L Chair Report

111. CEO Report

IV. Public Comment Period

V. Existing Business and Discussion
A. Approval Resolutions
i.  NONE
B. Preliminary Resolutions
i. NONE
C. Discussion
i.  NONE
D. Consent Resolutions

1. Lunar Module Park, LLC
ii. 101 Channel Drive, LLC
iii.  CSH Plainview, LLC
iv.  Agilant Solutions, Inc.
v. 14 Park Place, LLC
vi.  Rockville Manor Developer, LLC
vii.  Hardscrabble Apartments Preservation, LLC

VI. New Business

A. Preliminary Resolution

i.  NONE

VII. Committee Reports

VIII. Other Business
A. Minutes

i.  Approval of January 29, 2026 Minutes



IX.

XL

XII.

XIIL

Other Resolutions

1. Longevity Payment

Bills and Communications

Treasurer’s Report

Announcements

Executive Session

Adjournment



Lunar Module Park, LLC - Amendment Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”’) was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive &
Legislative Building, Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau
County, New York, on February 26, 2026, at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the , upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
John Coumatos Treasurer
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
NOT PRESENT:

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel

The attached resolution no. 2026-  was offeredby | seconded by

Doc # 05-1944384.1



Resolution No. 2026-

RESOLUTION TAKING ACTION WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT FOR LUNAR MODULE PARK, LLC, AND OTHER
MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the
1975 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing,
industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting
and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities,
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to
improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic
deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
“projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Agency and LUNAR MODULE PARK, LLC (the “Applicant™), a
limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York,
entered into a “‘straight lease” transaction in connection with a project and the Agency
provided the Original Financial Assistance (as such term is defined below) in connection
therewith that, as authorized by the Agency’s Resolution 2007-40 and Resolution 2009-14,
consisted of the following: (A) (1) acquisition of an interest in an approximately 29 acre
parcel of land located at 500 Grumman Road West, Bethpage, Town of Oyster Bay, County
of Nassau, New York (the “Land”), (2) the renovation of an approximately 660,000 square
foot building on the Land (the “Building”), together with related improvements to the Land,
and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of certain furniture, fixtures,
machinery and equipment (the “Original Equipment” and together with the Land and the
Building, but excluding the LIFT Unit, as such term is hereafter defined, collectively, the
“Original Project Facility”); (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the
meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential
additional exemptions or partial exemptions from sales and use taxes, mortgage recording
taxes and real property taxes (but not including special assessments and ad valorem levies)

Doc # 05-1944384.1



(collectively, the “Original Financial Assistance”); (C) the lease (with an obligation to
purchase) or sale of the Original Project Facility to the Applicant, or such other entity as may
be designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and (D) the sublease of the
Original Project Facility to the Applicant or such other entity(ies) as maybe designated by
the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the LIFT Unit, as such term is defined in that certain Project Conversion
Agreement between the Applicant and the Agency, dated as of July 1, 2007 (the “Conversion
Agreement”), comprising a portion of the Building and being a separate condominium unit,
was sold by the Applicant to Long Island Forum for Technology; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Original Project Facility the Agency entered into
a straight-lease transaction with the Applicant pursuant to a Lease Agreement dated as of
July 1,2007 (as amended from time to time, the “Lease”) and granted the Original Financial
Assistance; and

WHEREAS, on or about December 19, 2012, the Applicant presented an application
for additional “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act),
including potential additional exemptions or partial exemptions from real property taxes and
an exemption from sales and uses taxes (collectively, the “2012 Additional Financial
Assistance”) in connection with further improvements of the Original Project Facility to
enhance the use and sustainability of the Original Project Facility as a film studio; and

WHEREAS, the Agency granted the 2012 Additional Financial Assistance; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant presented an application for additional financial assistance
(the “Application”) to the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency consider
undertaking a project (the “2020 Project”) consisting, inter alia, of the following: (A)
retention of an interest in the Land, (B) Agency consent to allow portions of the Land and the
Building (collectively, the “2020 Project Facility”) to continue to be utilized for (1)
exhibition and event space when not utilized for Film Production operations, (2) license, on a
month-to-month or 90 day termination basis, certain portions of the parking lot for temporary
storage of auto dealer new vehicle inventory and (3) the tenancy of B&S Lighting and
Furniture Inc. to occupy 40,000 square feet of the designated Non-Production Space in the
Building for the storage of furniture/lighting inventory; (C) the granting of certain additional
“financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the
foregoing, including potential exemptions or partial exemptions from mortgage recording
taxes and real property taxes (but not including special assessments and ad valorem levies)
(the “2020 Additional Financial Assistance”); and (D) the amendment of certain Transaction
Documents (as defined in the Lease) in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on September 17,
2020, the Agency approved the 2020 Additional Financial Assistance; and

WHEREAS, by letter and amended application documents, dated September 23,
2020, the Applicant presented a request for an amendment (the “Amendment Application™)
to the 2020 Additional Financial Assistance (the “Amendment to the Additional Financial

Doc # 05-1944384.1



Assistance ) to the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency increase the
approved amount of mortgage funds subject to mortgage recording tax exemption in the
amount of $13,000,000.00, for a total maximum mortgage amount of $25,000,000.00; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on October 22,
2020, the Agency approved the Amendment to the Additional Financial Assistance; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant received the 2020 Additional Financial Assistance, as
amended by the Amendment Application, with respect to the 2020 Project Facility from the
Agency; and

WHERAS, the Agency, by resolution No. 2021 — 63, adopted an Environmental
Pollution Mitigation Assistance Policy authorizing the provision of strategic financial
assistance in the form of sales and/or use tax exemption and, if eligible, in additional forms
of financial assistance, for qualifying environmental pollution mitigation and conservation
projects that commit to provide for equipment, improvements, structures or facilities; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated October 6, 2021, the Applicant requested (the “2021
Application”) that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “2021 Project’) consisting,
inter alia, of the following: (A)(1) retention of an interest in the Land; (2) retention of an
interest in the Building; and (3) the acquisition and construction of solar electric and battery
system (the “New Equipment”) on the Land the Building; and (B) the granting of certain
additional “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with
respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions or partial exemptions from sales and
use tax for the cost of the acquisition and construction of the solar electric and battery system
(the “2021 Financial Assistance”) (the “2021 Amended Request”); and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on November 18,
2021 (the “2021 Preliminary Inducement Resolution™), the Agency, following a review of
the 2021 Application, determined to take preliminary action toward the acquisition and
straight leasing of the 2021 Project for the Applicant and made a determination to proceed
with the 2021 Project; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on December 16,
2021 (the “2021 Resolution”), the Agency approved certain financial assistance for the
benefit of the Applicant in connection with the 2021 Project consisting of: an exemption
from sales and use taxes with respect to the New Equipment in an amount not to exceed
$124,813.00 (the “2021 Financial Assistance”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a certain Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement originally
dated as of July 1, 2007, as amended and restated pursuant to that certain Amended and
Restated Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement, dated April 7, 2008, as further amended by
the First Amendment to Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2008, as
further amended and restated by an Amended and Restated Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Agreement, dated as of August 26, 2009, as further amended by the Third Amendment to
Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2012, and as further amended
by the Fourth Amendment to Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement, dated as of December

Doc # 05-1944384.1



17, 2020, each by and between the Agency and the Applicant (as amended, the “PILOT
Agreement”), the Applicant has agreed to make certain payments in lieu of real property
taxes with respect to the Land and the Improvements thereon; and

WHEREAS, Section 7 of the PILOT Agreement currently prohibits the Applicant
from challenging the assessed value of the Project Facility while the PILOT Agreement
remains in effect; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated February 4, 2025 from counsel to the Applicant (the
“Consent Request”), the Applicant requested that the Agency consent to the waiver of the
provisions of the Transaction Documents prohibiting the Applicant from instituting tax
certiorari proceedings to challenge the assessed value of the Project Facility (the
“Amendment Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to the Amendment Transaction,
provided that such Amendment Transaction shall not result in any changes in the amount of
payments in lieu of taxes payable by the Applicant pursuant to the PILOT Agreement (as
defined in the Lease);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings given to them in the Lease.

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions
heretofore taken by the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters contemplated by this
Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to ensure full compliance
with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate thereto.

Section 3. The Agency determines that the Amendment Transaction is a Type 11
Action under SEQRA, precluded from further environmental review, because it constitutes a
reuse of a commercial structure where the newly proposed commercial use is a permitted use
under the applicable zoning law or ordinance, including permitted by special use permit, and
the action does not meet or exceed any of the Type I thresholds outlined in section 617.4,

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant
with respect to the Amendment Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency
is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied
with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the
Consent Request.

Section 6. Based on the recitals set forth above and on the facts and information

obtained by the staff of the Agency and reported to and reviewed by the members of the
Agency at this meeting, the Agency hereby determines that it has reviewed and assessed all

Doc # 05-1944384.1



material information necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the Agency to make the
determinations set forth herein.

Section 7. The Agency is hereby authorized to enter into the Amendment
Transaction provided that such Amendment Transaction shall not result in any changes in the
amount of payments in lieu of taxes payable by the Applicant pursuant to the PILOT
Agreement.

Section 8. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative
Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are each hereby authorized to execute,
acknowledge and deliver any documents, instruments or agreement he or she deems
necessary or advisable to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution (collectively, the
“Amendment Documents™). The execution and delivery of any such Amendment Document
by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due authorization and approval.

Section 9. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are further subject to the
condition that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent fee in the amount of $750 and
reimburse the Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with
the transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, the Agency’s consent
and amendment fee and all reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements incurred by the
Agency, including without limitation, the fees and expenses of Special Counsel, Phillips
Lytle LLP.

Section 10.  All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency
contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the
covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements
shall be binding upon the Agency and its successors from time to time; provided, however,
that no covenants, stipulations, obligations or agreements of the Agency contained in this
Resolution or any Amendment Document shall give rise to any pecuniary liability of the
Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate the Agency in any way except
to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from the Project Facility or the sale or
liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom.

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in
any Amendment Document shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or
agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his or her
individual capacity and neither the members of the Agency nor any officer executing any
Amendment Document shall be liable personally on the Amendment Documents or be
subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 11.  The Agency hereby authorizes the Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive
Director and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, to
approve modifications to the terms approved hereby which are not inconsistent with the
intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the execution by
such officers of the documents, instruments or agreements containing such modifications.

Doc # 05-1944384.1



Section 12.  The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative
Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to
distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as any such
officer may determine.

Section 13.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Doc # 05-1944384.1



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly
put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

Doc # 05-1944384.1



STATE OF NEW YORK )

COUNTY OF NASSAU )

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County
Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), do hereby certify that we have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof on file in our
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters
therein referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general public,
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such
Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this day of February, 2026.

[Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chair

(SEAL)

Doc # 05-1944384.1



101 Channel Dr. LLC - Amendment Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”’) was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive &
Legislative Building, Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau
County, New York, on February 26, 2026, at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the , upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
John Coumatos Treasurer
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
NOT PRESENT:

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel

The attached resolution no. 2026-  was offeredby | seconded by

Doc # 05-1944384.1



Resolution No. 2026-

RESOLUTION TAKING ACTION WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT FOR 101 CHANNEL DR. LLC, AND OTHER MATTERS IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the
1975 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal
Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing,
industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting
and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities,
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to
improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic
deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
“projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, 101 CHANNEL DR. LLC, a limited liability company organized and
existing under the laws of the State of New York (the “Company’’), and Lunar Module Park,
LLC, a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of New
York (together with the Company, collectively, the “Applicants”), previously presented an
application for financial assistance (the “Application”) to the Agency, which Application
requested that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the
following: (A) (1) acquisition of an interest in an approximately 13 acre parcel of land
located at 101 Channel Drive, Port Washington, Village of Port Washington North, Town of
North Hempstead, County of Nassau, New York (the "Land"), (2) the renovation of
approximately 100,000 square foot and 60,000 square foot buildings on the Land (the
"Building"), together with related improvements to the Land, and (3) the acquisition and
installation therein and thereon of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment (the
"Equipment" and together with the Land and the Building, collectively, the "Project
Facility"); (B) the granting of certain "financial assistance" (within the meaning of Section
854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions or partial
exemptions from sales and use taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (but

Doc # 05-1944384.1



not including special assessments and ad valorem levies) (collectively, the "Financial
Assistance"); (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Project Facility to
the Company, or such other entity as may be designated by the Company and agreed upon by
the Agency; and (D) the sublease of the Project Facility to the Company or such other
entity(ies) as maybe designated by the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, on September 17,2020, the Agency approved the Financial Assistance;
and

WHEREAS, on October 22, 2020, the Applicants presented a request for an
amendment (the “Amendment Application”) to the Financial Assistance (the "Amendment to
the Financial Assistance ") to the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency
increase the approved amount of the project cost in the amount of $6,000,000.00, thereby
increasing the amount of the Maximum Sales Tax Exemption; and

WHEREAS, on October 22, 2020, the Agency approved the Amendment to the
Financial Assistance and the Applicants received the Financial Assistance and the additional
Financial Assistance with respect to the Project Facility from the Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Agency appointed the Company as agent of the Agency to undertake
the acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility and the Agency
subleased the Project Facility to the Company, all pursuant to the terms and conditions set
forth in the Sublease Agreement dated as of December 1, 2020 between the Company and
the Agency (as amended, the “Lease”), and the other Transaction Documents (as defined in
the Lease); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a notification and consent request letter dated March 2, 2022
from counsel to the Company, the Company requested that the Agency consent to (a) the
release of a portion of the Land consisting of the premises designated on the Nassau County
Tax Map as Section 4, Block 123, Lot 50 so that such land may be conveyed to the Village
of Port Washington North, (b) the Company granting the Village of Port Washington North
and the Port Washington Water Pollution Control District, together with their successors and
assigns, a subsurface easement on, over, under, across and along a portion of the Project
Facility (specifically part of the parcels designated on the Nassau County Tax Map as
Section 5, Block 123, Lots 20 and 24), for the sole purpose of constructing, using,
maintaining, operating, altering, adding to, repairing, replacing, reconstructing, inspecting
and removing at any time and from time to time, underground drainage and sewer pipes and
appurtenant drainage facilities (the “Easement”), and (c) the conforming amendment of the
Lease and other Transaction Documents (including the amendment of finance mortgages)
(collectively, the “Release Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2022, the Agency approved the Release Transaction; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a notification and consent request letter dated March 28,
2022 from counsel to the Company, the Company requested that the Agency consent to the
subordination of the Company Lease, Lease and PILOT Mortgage to the Easement
(collectively, the “Subordination Transaction™); and

Doc # 05-1944384.1



WHEREAS, on March 31, 2022, the Agency approved the Subordination
Transaction; and

WHEREAS, by letter of counsel to the Company, dated October 12, 2022, the
Company requested that the Agency consent to the amendment of the Uniform Project and
the other Transaction Documents to allow the Company to complete the acquisition,
construction, installation and equipping of the Project Facility on or before December 31,
2023 and to extend the Company’s status as the Agency’s agent for purposes of its sales tax
exemption to December 31, 2023 due to delays associated with COVID-19, ongoing supply
chain delays and inspections required in connection with the equipping and improving of the
Building (the “2022 Amendment Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2022, the Agency approved the 2022 Amendment
Transaction; and

WHEREAS, by letter from counsel to the Applicant dated February 4, 2026 (the
“Consent Request”), the Applicant proposed that (i) the Agency modify the permitted use
provisions of the Lease to allow the Applicant to sub-sublease space at the Project Facility to
third parties for industrial, warehouse and other commercial uses permitted by current
zoning, and (ii) the Agency enter into amendments of the Lease and the other Transaction
Documents to effectuate the foregoing (collectively, the “Amendment Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation
Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”)
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, et. seq., as amended (the
“Regulations” and collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the Agency must satisfy the
requirements contained in SEQRA prior to making a final determination whether to
undertake the Amendment Transaction; and

WHEREAS, prior to making a recommendation as to the potential environmental
significance of the Amendment Transaction, the Agency reviewed the Consent Request and
considered the list of activities that are Type I Actions outlined in Section 617.4 of the
Regulations, the list of activities that are Type II Actions outlined in Section 617.5 of the
Regulations, and the criteria for determining significance outlined in Section 617.7 of the
Regulations; and

WHEREAS, 6 NYCRR 617.5(a) of the Regulations states that a Type Il action is an
action or class of actions identified under 6 NYCRR 617.5 that have been determined not to
have a significant impact on the environment or are otherwise precluded from environmental
review under the SEQR Act; and

WHEREAS, 6 NYCRR 617.5(c)(26) provides that a Type II action not subject to
further review under SEQRA includes the “routine or continuing agency administration and
management, not including new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect
the environment;” and

Doc # 05-1944384.1



WHEREAS, no additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Company
with respect to such request and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act;

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to the Amendment Transaction, subject
to the terms and conditions set forth in this Resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings given to them in the Lease.

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions
heretofore taken by the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters contemplated by this
Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to ensure full compliance
with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate thereto.

Section 3. The Amendment Transaction is a Type II Action under SEQRA,
precluded from further environmental review, because it constitutes routine, continuing
agency administration and management, does not include new programs or major reordering
of priorities that may affect the environment, and does not meet or exceed any of the Type |
thresholds outlined in section 617.4.

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant
with respect to the Amendment Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency
is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied
with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the
Amendment Transaction.

Section 6. Based on the recitals set forth above and on the facts and information
obtained by the staff of the Agency and reported to and reviewed by the members of the
Agency at this meeting, the Agency hereby determines that it has reviewed and assessed all
material information necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the Agency to make the
determinations set forth herein.

Section 7. The Agency is hereby authorized to enter into the Amendment
Transaction.

Doc # 05-1944384.1



Section 8. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative
Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are each hereby authorized to execute,
acknowledge and deliver any documents, instruments or agreement he or she deems
necessary or advisable to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution (collectively, the
“Amendment Documents™). The execution and delivery of any such Amendment Document
by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due authorization and approval.

Section 9. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are further subject to the
condition that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent fee in the amount of $750 and
reimburse the Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with
the transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, the Agency’s consent
and amendment fee and all reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements incurred by the
Agency, including without limitation, the fees and expenses of Special Counsel, Phillips
Lytle LLP.

Section 10.  All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency
contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the
covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements
shall be binding upon the Agency and its successors from time to time; provided, however,
that no covenants, stipulations, obligations or agreements of the Agency contained in this
Resolution or any Amendment Document shall give rise to any pecuniary liability of the
Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate the Agency in any way except
to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from the Project Facility or the sale or
liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom.

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in
any Amendment Document shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or
agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his or her
individual capacity and neither the members of the Agency nor any officer executing any
Amendment Document shall be liable personally on the Amendment Documents or be
subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 11.  The Agency hereby authorizes the Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive
Director and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, to
approve modifications to the terms approved hereby which are not inconsistent with the
intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the execution by
such officers of the documents, instruments or agreements containing such modifications.

Section 12.  The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative
Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to
distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as any such
officer may determine.

Section 13.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Doc # 05-1944384.1



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly
put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

Doc # 05-1944384.1



STATE OF NEW YORK )

COUNTY OF NASSAU )

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County
Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), do hereby certify that we have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof on file in our
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters
therein referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general public,
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such
Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this day of February, 2026.

[Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chair

(SEAL)

Doc # 05-1944384.1



CSH Plainview, LLC - Consent Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”)
was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative Building,
Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York, on February

26, 2026, at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the

members of the Agency were:
PRESENT:

William H. Rockensies
Raymond Pinto

John Coumatos

Joseph Manzella
Reginald A. Spinello
Marco Troiano

Ryan Sakowich

NOT PRESENT:

, upon roll being called, the following

Chair

Secretary/Asst. Treasurer
Treasurer

Asst. Secretary

Member

Member

Member

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel
Anne LaMorte
Colleen Pereira
Stephanie Alfano
Anthony Marano
Paul O’Brien

The attached resolution no. 2026-

Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer

Administrative Director

Temporary Administrative Assistant
Agency Counsel

Bond/Transaction Counsel

~__was offered by , seconded by



Resolution No. 2026 —

RESOLUTION OF THE NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY AUTHORIZING CERTAIN MATTERS IN CONNECTION WITH ITS
STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH CSH PLAINIEW, LLC

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the 1975
Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law (said
Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote,
develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving,
maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of
living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, CHS PLAINVIEW, LLC, (the “Applicant”), submitted an application for
financial assistance (the “Application”) to the Agency requesting that the Agency consider
undertaking a project (the “Project’) consisting of inter ilia, the following: (A)(1) the acquisition
of an interest in an approximately 4.85 acre parcel of land located at 9 Gerhard Road, Plainview,
Town of Oyster Bay, Nassau County, New York (Section: 46; Block: 567; Lot: 61 and Section:
47; Block: 022; Lot: 3 and 4) (the “Land”), (2) the renovation of an existing approximately
150,000 square foot vacant building (collectively, the “Building”) on the Land, together with
related improvements to the Land and (3) the acquisition of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery
and equipment (the “Equipment”) necessary for the completion thereof (collectively, the “Project
Facility”), all of the foregoing for use by the Applicant as an approximately 117-unit senior (62
and over) residential independent living facility; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance”
(within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the General Municipal Law) with respect to the
foregoing in the form of potential exemptions or partial exemptions from real property taxes,
mortgage recording taxes and sales and use taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and
(C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase), license or sale of the Project Facility to the
Applicant or such other entity as may be designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the
Agency; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on April 18, 2019 (the
“Authorizing Resolution™), the Agency determined to proceed with the Project, to grant the
Financial Assistance and to enter into the “straight lease transaction” (as such quoted term is
defined in the Act) contemplated by the Authorizing Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Agency appointed the Applicant as agent of the Agency to undertake the
acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility, all pursuant to the terms
and conditions set forth in the Uniform Project Agreement dated as of July 1, 2019 between the
Applicant and the Agency (as amended, modified, supplemented and restated to date, the “Project
Agreement”) and the other Transaction Documents (as defined in the Project Agreement); and



WHEREAS, by letter and Application for Financial Assistance each dated February 11,
2026 (collectively, the “Consent Request”), the Agency has been requested to consent to (a) the
transfer of the Applicant’s right, title and interest in the Project Facility to The Residences at
Plainview LL, LLC, an affiliate of Investcorp. (the “Assignee”), (b) the assignment by the
Applicant to the Assignee of the Applicant’s right, title and interest in and to the Project
Agreement, the Company Lease Agreement (as defined in the Project Agreement), the Leaseback
Agreement (as defined in the Project Agreement), the PILOT Agreement (as defined in the
Leaseback Agreement) and the other Transaction Documents, (c) the master leasing of the
Project Facility by The Residences at Plainview TT, LLC, a joint venture between Investcorp.
and the owners of the Assignee, (d) the replacement of certain guarantors and indemnitors under
the Transaction Documents, and (e) the execution and delivery of certain amendments and other
documents, instruments and agreements for the purpose of, inter alia, correcting a scrivener’s
error with respect to the use of the Project Facility by a Permitted Transferee (collectively, the
“Proposed Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9.3 of the Leaseback Agreement, the Applicant is
permitted to assign its interests in the Project Facility and the Transaction Documents upon
receipt of approval from the Agency; and

WHEREAS, no additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant or the
Assignee with respect to the Proposed Transaction and, therefore, no public hearing of the
Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to the Proposed Transaction, subject to the
terms of this resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings given to them in the Transaction Documents.

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves actions heretofore taken by
the Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the
matters contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to
ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws
that relate thereto.

Section 3. The Agency determines that the Applicant’s request with respect to previously
approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving “continuing
agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major reordering of priorities
that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(20)) and therefore no Findings or
determination of significance are required under SEQRA.



Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant or the
Assignee with respect to the Proposed Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the
Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the
requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the requested
consent.

Section 6. The Agency has considered the request made by the Applicant and the
Assignee and hereby finds and determines that the requested consent will promote the job
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau
County, New York, and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes
of the Act. Accordingly, the Agency hereby approves the Proposed Transaction as set forth in
the Consent Request, subject to the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 7. The execution and delivery of the documents, instruments and agreements
required to effectuate the Proposed Transaction (collectively, the “Amendment Documents”),
being substantially in the forms used for prior similar transactions, are hereby authorized and
approved. The Chair, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized, acting individually or jointly,
to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Amendment Documents. The execution and delivery of
the Amendment Documents by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due
authorization and approval.

Section 8. The Chair, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer
and Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby designated an Authorized
Representative of the Agency and each of them is hereby authorized and directed, acting
individually or jointly, to execute and deliver any and all consents, agreements, amendments,
papers, instruments, opinions, certificates, affidavits and other documents required in connection
with the Amendment Documents (collectively, the “Consent Documents”), and to do and cause
to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out this Resolution,
including, without limitation, taking any necessary action to obtain consent of any other person or
party necessary with respect to execution, delivery and approval of the Consent Documents, The
execution and delivery of the Consent Documents by any one of said officers shall he conclusive
evidence of due authorization and approval.

Section 9. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the conditions that
(1) the Agency is not consenting herein to the undertaking of any construction, renovation,
installation or equipping of the Project Facility except as contemplated by the Transaction
Documents or to the construction of any other structures or improvements on the Land other than
as contemplated by the Transaction Documents; (ii) all necessary due diligence will be conducted
as to the Assignee and its principals and the results of same shall be satisfactory to Staff of the
Agency; and (iii) the Applicant or the Assignee shall pay the Agency’s consent fee and shall
reimburse the Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with the
transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, all reasonable attorneys' fees and
disbursements incurred by the Agency, including without limitation, the fees and expenses of
Special Counsel, Phillips Lytle LLP.



Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency
contained in this Resolution, the Amendment Documents and the Consent Documents shall be
deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full
extent authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be binding upon the Agency and its successors from time to time; provided,
however, that no covenants, stipulations, obligations or agreements of the Agency contained in
this Resolution, any Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall give rise to any
pecuniary liability of the Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate the
Agency in any way except to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from the Project
Facility or the sale or liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom.

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in any
Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation,
obligation or agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his or her
individual capacity and neither the members of the Agency nor any officer executing any
Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall be liable personally on the Amendment
Documents or the Consent Documents or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by
reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 11. The Chair and Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director of the Agency,
acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized to approve modifications to the terms
approved herein which are not inconsistent with the intent and substance of this Resolution, such
approval to be evidenced by the execution by such officer of the Amendment Documents and/or
the Consent Documents containing such modifications.

Section 12. Notwithstanding any provision in the Transaction Documents to the contrary,
the Agency’s consent does not and shall not be construed to mean that there are no defaults,
events of default or recapture events under the Leaseback Agreement or any other Transaction
Document or that any such defaults, events of default or recapture events have been or shall be
waived by the Agency.

Section 13. The Chair, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby
authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant, the Assignee and
such other parties as any such officer may determine.

Section 14. It is expressly understood that no provision of this Resolution shall be
interpreted as permitting any waiver by the Agency of any default by the Assignee occurring on
or after the effective date of its assumption of the Project Agreement, the Company Lease, the
Leaseback Agreement and the other Transaction Documents.

Section 15. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly
put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.



STATE OF NEW YORK
) SS.:
COUNTY OF NASSAU

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Asst.] Secretary of the Nassau County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof on file in our
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters
therein referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public,
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such
Open Meetings Law; (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout
said meeting; and (E) the meeting was recorded and the recording has been or will be posted on
the public website of the Agency pursuant to the Open Meetings Law.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this day of February, 2026.

[ Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chair

(SEAL)



Agilant Solutions, Inc. - Consent Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”’) was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive &
Legislative Building, Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau
County, New York, on February 26, 2026, at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the , upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
John Coumatos Treasurer
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
NOT PRESENT:

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel

The attached resolution no. 2026-  was offeredby | seconded by

Doc # 05-1954211.1



Resolution No. 2026-

RESOLUTION OF THE NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AUTHORIZING CERTAIN MATTERS IN
CONNECTION WITH ITS STRAIGHT-LEASE TRANSACTION WITH
AGILANT SOLUTIONS, INC.

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”)
is authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of
New York, constituting Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24
of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter
674 of the 1975 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said
General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring,
constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of
manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of
promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to
advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the
people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and
to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
“projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, AGILANT SOLUTIONS, INC., a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of New York (the “Applicant”), previously presented
an application for financial assistance (the “Application”) to the Agency, which
Application requested that the Agency consider consenting to the Applicant assuming an
existing Agency project (the “New Project”) consisting of the following: (A)(1) the
acquisition of an interest in a certain parcel of land located at 3 Seaview Boulevard, Port
Washington, Town of North Hempstead, County of Nassau, New York (Section: 6;
Block: 89; Lots: 12, 13 and 61) (the “Land”), (2) the renovation of an existing
approximately 72,500 square foot warehouse/office building on the Land (the
“Building”), together with related improvements to the Land, and (3) the acquisition and
installation therein and thereon of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment
(the “Equipment”), all of the foregoing for use by the Applicant and its affiliates as a
warehouse and office facility (collectively, the “Project Facility”); (B) the granting of
certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the General
Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”);
(C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase), license or sale of the Project Facility to the
Applicant or such other entity as may be designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by
the Agency; and (D) the sublease thereof to the Applicant or such other entity(ies) as may
be designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and

Doc # 05-1954211.1



WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on November
16, 2017 (the “Authorizing Resolution”), the Agency determined to proceed with the
New Project, to grant the Financial Assistance and to enter into the “straight lease
transaction” (as such quoted term is defined in the Act) contemplated by the Authorizing
Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is the tenant under an amended and restated lease
dated as of March 1, 2018 between VK 3 Seaview, LLC, as successor-by-assignment to
HJJ Seaview Realty, LLC, as landlord (the “Overlandlord”), and the Applicant, as tenant,
pursuant to which the Applicant leased, inter alia, the Land and the Building
(collectively, the “Premises”) from the Overlandlord (the “Overlease’); and

WHEREAS, the Applicant subleased its interest in the Project Facility to the
Agency pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Company Lease Agreement
dated as of March 1, 2018 between the Applicant and the Agency (as amended to date,
the “Company Lease”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency appointed the Applicant as agent of the Agency to
undertake the acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility
and the Agency has sub-subleased the Project Facility to the Applicant, all pursuant to the
terms and conditions set forth in the Amended and Restated Sublease Agreement
(Uniform Project Agreement) dated as of March 1, 2018 between the Applicant and the
Agency (as amended to date, the “Lease”), and the other Transaction Documents (as
defined in the Lease); and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is not in compliance with its obligations under the
Lease and the other Transaction Documents and a default has occurred as a result of the
failure to maintain the Minimum Employment Requirement (as defined in the Lease)
required as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2023, as evidenced by the jobs
report delivered to the Agency on February 17, 2023 and the jobs report delivered to the
Agency on February 23, 2024, respectively (collectively, the “Prior Disclosed Defaults™);
and

WHEREAS, such Prior Disclosed Defaults also constituted Recapture Events (as
defined in the Lease) pursuant to Section 11.4(C)(7) of the Lease; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated September 23, 2024, the Applicant provided an
explanation of the reasons for the Prior Disclosed Defaults and, pursuant to discussions
between representatives of the Applicant and the CEO/Executive Director of the Agency,
the Applicant requested a forbearance on enforcement of the Agency’s rights and
remedies through December 31, 2024 to allow the Applicant to hire sufficient employees
to meet the Minimum Employment Requirement as of such date (the “2024
Forbearance”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency approved the 2024 Forbearance by resolution adopted by
the members of the Agency on October 15, 2024 and the Applicant and the Agency

Doc # 05-1954211.1



entered into a Forbearance Agreement dated as of November 13, 2024 (the “Forbearance
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Applicant is not in compliance with its obligations under the
Lease and the other Transaction Documents and a default has occurred as a result of the
failure to maintain the Minimum Employment Requirement required as of December 31,
2024, as evidenced by the jobs report delivered to the Agency on February [ ], 2025
(the “2024 Disclosed Default”); and

WHEREAS, the 2024 Disclosed Default also constitutes a Recapture Event (as
defined in the Lease) pursuant to Section 11.4(C)(7) of the Lease; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has disclosed to the Agency that it was not in
compliance with its obligations under the Lease and the other Transaction Documents
and a default has occurred as a result of the failure to maintain the Minimum
Employment Requirement required as of December 31, 2025 and that it has ceased its
operations at the Project Facility and relocated to another location in Nassau County (the
“2025 Disclosed Defaults”); and

WHEREAS, the 2025 Disclosed Defaults also constitute Recapture Events
pursuant to Section 11.4(C)(2) and (7) of the Lease; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has proposed a settlement arrangement pursuant to
which the Agency and the Applicant would agree to (i) the settlement of the total amount
of the Recapture of Benefits at $1,000,000, (ii) an initial non-refundable payment by the
Applicant to the Agency in the amount of $250,000 upon entering into a settlement
agreement between the parties, (ii1) a non-refundable payment by the Applicant to the
Agency in the amount of $250,000 on or before July 1, 2026 pursuant to such settlement
agreement, (iv) a covenant by the Applicant to continue to maintain not less than 185
full-time equivalent jobs in Nassau County through December 31, 2027, and (v) testing
of such covenant on December 31, 2026 and December 31, 2027 with a covenant to pay
$250,000 on each such date if the Applicant is not in compliance with the foregoing job
covenant as of such testing dates (collectively, the “Settlement Proposal”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to the Settlement Proposal, subject
to the terms of this Resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE
NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have
the meanings given to them in the Lease.

Section 2. The Agency determines that the Applicant’s requests with respect
to a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to Article 8
of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New
York, as amended (the "SEQR Act"), and the regulations (the "Regulations") adopted

Doc # 05-1954211.1



pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New
York (collectively with the SEQR Act, "SEQRA"), involving “continuing agency
administration” which does not involve “new programs or major reordering of priorities
that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(20)) and therefore no Findings or
determination of significance are required under Article 8 of the New York
Environmental Conservation Law.

Section 3. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions
heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect
to the Settlement Proposal, including, without limitation, (a) those actions required to
ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other statutes,
codes, laws, rules and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over
the Project Facility (collectively, “Applicable Laws”), and (b) the appointment of the law
firm of Phillips Lytle LLP, Garden City, New York, as Special Counsel to the Agency
with respect to all matters in connection with the Project.

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the
Applicant with respect to the Settlement Proposal. Therefore, no public hearing of the
Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied
with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the
Settlement Proposal.

Section 6. The Agency hereby consents to the Settlement Proposal. The
Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency are each
hereby authorized to prepare, negotiate, execute, acknowledge and deliver such
documents, instruments and agreements with the Applicant and related parties
(collectively, the “Settlement Documents™) as the Chair, CEO/Executive Director or
Administrative Director may determine are desirable or necessary to carry out the
purposes of this Resolution. The execution and delivery of the Settlement Documents by
any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due authorization and approval.

Section 7. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the
Agency contained in this Resolution and the Settlement Documents shall be deemed to be
the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be binding upon the Agency and its successors from time to time;
provided, however, that no covenants, stipulations, obligations or agreements of the
Agency contained in this Resolution or any Settlement Document shall give rise to any
pecuniary liability of the Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate
the Agency in any way except to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from
the Project Facility or the sale or liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom.

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or
contained in the Settlement Documents shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation,
obligation or agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his

Doc # 05-1954211.1



or her individual capacity and neither the members of the Agency nor any officer
executing any Settlement Document shall be liable personally on the Settlement
Documents or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the
issuance thereof.

Section 8. The Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative
Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting
together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives (as
defined in the Lease) of the Agency.

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby
authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf
of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the
Settlement Documents, to execute and deliver all such additional certificates,
instruments, agreements and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses, and
to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer,
employee or agent acting, convenient or appropriate to effect the purposes of this
Resolution and to cause compliance with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the
Settlement Documents to which the Agency is a party or which are binding on the
Agency.

Section 10.  The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the
proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby
may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and
substance of the authorizations and approvals by the Agency herein. The Agency hereby
authorizes the Chair and the CEO/Executive Director of the Agency to approve
modifications to the terms approved hereby which do not affect the intent and substance
of this Resolution. The approval of such modifications shall be evidenced by the
certificate of determination of an Agency officer or the execution and delivery by some
or all such Agency officers of relevant documents containing such modified terms.

Section 11.  The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the
condition that the Applicant, the Overlandlord or the Guarantor shall reimburse the
Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with the
transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, the Agency’s Recapture
Settlement Amount and all reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements incurred by the
Agency, including without limitation, the fees and expenses of Special Counsel, Phillips
Lytle LLP.

Section 12.  The Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative
Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this
Resolution and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or
convenient to implement the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 13.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective
for ninety (90) days from the date of its adoption.

Doc # 05-1954211.1



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly
put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

Doc # 05-1954211.1



STATE OF NEW YORK )

COUNTY OF NASSAU )

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County
Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), do hereby certify that we have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof on file in our
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set
forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters
therein referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general public,
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such
Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this day of February, 2026.

[Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chair

(SEAL)

Doc # 05-1929744.1



14 PARK PLACE LLC
- Consent Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”) was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive &
Legislative Building, Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau
County, New York, on February 26, 2026, at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the , upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
John Coumatos Treasurer
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
NOT PRESENT:

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel

The attached resolution no. 2026-  was offered by = | seconded by

Doc # 05-1954213.1



Resolution No. 2026 -

RESOLUTION TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD AND APPROVING
CERTAIN MATTERS IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT
FOR 14 PARK PLACE LLC

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of
the 1975 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General
Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing,
industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting
and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State
of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent
unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more
“projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed,
reconstructed and installed and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the
obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, 14 PARK PLACE LLC, a limited liability company organized and
existing under the laws of the State of New York (the “Applicant”), has presented an
application for financial assistance (the “Application) to the Agency, which Application
requests that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the
following: (A)(1) the acquisition of an interest in an approximately 0.69-acre parcel of land
located at 14 Park Place, a/k/a 15 Bond Street, a/k/a 24 Park Place in the Village of Great
Neck Plaza, Town of North Hempstead, Nassau County, New York (Section: 02; Block:
331; Lots: 39, 47 and 48) (the “Land”), (2) the demolition of existing improvements and
the construction of an approximately 60,000 square foot building consisting of
approximately 55 residential rental units (the “Building”) on the Land, together with related
improvements to the Land, and (3) the acquisition of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery
and equipment necessary for the completion thereof (the “Equipment”), all of the foregoing
for use by the Applicant as a residential rental facility (collectively, the “Project Facility”);
(B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14)
of the General Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing; and (C) the lease (with an
obligation to purchase), license or sale of the Project Facility to the Applicant or such other
entity as may be designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on December
19, 2017 (the “Authorizing Resolution™), the Agency determined to proceed with the
Project, to grant the Financial Assistance and to enter into the “straight lease transaction”

Doc # 05-1954213.1



(as such quoted term is defined in the Act) contemplated by the Lease Agreement (as
hereinafter defined) and the other Transaction Documents (as defined in the Lease
Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the Agency appointed the Applicant as agent of the Agency to
undertake the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Facility
and subleased the Project Facility to the Applicant, and the Applicant as agent of the
Agency has undertaken the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the
Project Facility and has subleased the Project Facility from the Agency, all pursuant to the
terms and conditions set forth in that certain Sublease Agreement (Uniform Project
Agreement) dated as of February 1, 2018 between the Agency and the Applicant (the
“Lease Agreement”) and in the other Transaction Documents (as defined in the Lease
Agreement); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a consent request letter from counsel to the Applicant
dated February 12, 2026 (the “Consent Request”), the Applicant requested that the Agency
consent to the transfer of membership interests in the Applicant by Joel Namdar and
Ephraim Namdar to members of their respective families including trusts and limited
liability companies for the benefit of the members of their respective families, all for
refinancing and estate planning purposes, and the amendment of the Lease Agreement and
the other Transaction Documents required to effectuate such transfer (collectively, the
“Transfer Transaction’); and

WHEREAS, no additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant
with respect to such request and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to such requests, subject to the terms
of this Resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE
NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have
the meanings given to them in the Lease Agreement.

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves actions
heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect
to the matters contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions
required to ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act, Article 8 of the
Environmental Conservation Law (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations adopted pursuant
thereto (the “Regulations” and together with the SEQR Act, collectively, “SEQRA”), and
all other Applicable Laws that relate thereto.

Section 3. The Agency determines that the request for consent with respect to
a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA

Doc # 05-1954213.1



involving “continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or
major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(20))
and therefore no Findings or determination of significance are required under SEQRA.

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the
Applicant with respect to the Transfer Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the
Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 5. The Agency has considered the request made by the Applicant and
hereby finds and determines that the requested consent will promote the job opportunities,
health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New
York, and improve their standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the
Act.

Section 6. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied
with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the
Transfer Transaction.

Section 7. The Agency hereby consents to the terms of the Transfer
Transaction as set forth in the Consent Request, subject to the provisions of this Resolution.

Section 8. The execution and delivery of the documents, instruments and
agreements required to effectuate the Transfer Transaction (collectively, the “Amendment
Documents™), being substantially in the forms used for prior similar transactions, are
hereby authorized and approved. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and
Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized, acting individually or
jointly, to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Amendment Documents. The execution
and delivery of the Amendment Documents by any one of said officers shall be conclusive
evidence of due authorization and approval.

Section 9. The Acting Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and
Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby designated an Authorized
Representative of the Agency and each of them is hereby authorized and directed, acting
individually or jointly, to execute and deliver any and all consents, agreements,
amendments, papers, instruments, opinions, certificates, affidavits and other documents
required in connection with the Amendment Documents (collectively, the “Consent
Documents™), and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or
proper for carrying out this Resolution, including, without limitation, taking any necessary
action to obtain consent of any other person or party necessary with respect to execution,
delivery and approval of the Consent Documents. The execution and delivery of the
Consent Documents by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due
authorization and approval.

Section 10.  The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the
conditions that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent and amendment fee in the
amount of $6,000 and shall reimburse the Agency for all actual costs and expenses incurred
by the Agency in connection with the transactions contemplated herein, including, without

Doc # 05-1954213.1



limitation, all reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements incurred by the Agency,
including without limitation, the fees and expenses of Special Counsel, Phillips Lytle LLP.

Section 11.  All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the
Agency contained in this Resolution, the Amendment Documents and the Consent
Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements
of the Agency to the full extent authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants,
stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be binding upon the Agency and its
successors from time to time; provided, however, that no covenants, stipulations,
obligations or agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution, any Amendment
Document or any Consent Document shall give rise to any pecuniary liability of the
Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate the Agency in any way except
to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from the Project Facility or the sale or
liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom.

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in
any Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall be deemed to be a covenant,
stipulation, obligation or agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the
Agency in his or her individual capacity and neither the members of the Agency nor any
officer executing any Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall be liable
personally on the Amendment Documents or the Consent Documents or be subject to any
personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.

Section 12.  The Chair and CEO/Executive Director of the Agency are each
hereby authorized to approve modifications to the terms approved herein which are not
inconsistent with the intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced
by the execution by any one of such officers of the Amendment Documents and/or the
Consent Documents containing such modifications.

Section 13.  Notwithstanding any provision in the Lease Agreement or any other
Transaction Document to the contrary, the Agency’s consent does not and shall not be
construed to mean that there are no defaults or events of default under the Lease Agreement
or any other Transaction Document or that any such defaults or events of default have
been or shall be waived by the Agency.

Section 14.  The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative
Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed
to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as any such
officer may determine.

Section 15.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Doc # 05-1954213.1



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly
put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

Doc # 05-1954213.1



STATE OF NEW YORK )

COUNTY OF NASSAU )

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County
Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), do hereby certify that we have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof on file in our
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set forth
therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein
referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general public, and due
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout said
meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hercof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this day of February, 2026.

[Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chair

(SEAL)



EXHIBIT A

CONSENT REQUEST

See Attached

Doc # 05-1954213.1



Rockville Manor Developer LLC - Approving Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”)
was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative Building,
Legislative Chambers, 1% Floor, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York on
February 26, 2026 at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, upon roll being called, the following
members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
Raymond Pinto Secretary / Asst. Treasurer
John Coumatos Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
ABSENT:

THE FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer

Colleen Pereira Administrative Director

Nicole Gil Administrative Assistant

Anthony Marano Agency Counsel

Andrew D. Komaromi, Esq. Bond/Transactional Counsel

The attached resolution No. 2026- was offered by , seconded

Error! Unknown document property name.



Resolution No. 2026-

RESOLUTION AMENDING AND RATIFYING RESOLUTION NO. No. 2024-
67 AND TAKING FURTHER OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD AND
APPROVING THE ACQUISITION AND STRAIGHT LEASING OF A
CERTAIN PROJECT FOR ROCKVILLE MANOR DEVELOPER LLC

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the
1975 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law
(said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to
promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing,
improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial
facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically
sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and
empowered under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects”
(as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and
installed and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase;
and

WHEREAS, Rockville Manor Developer LLC, a limited liability company organized
and existing under the laws of the State of New York, together with entities formed or to be
formed on its behalf (collectively, the “Applicant”), has presented an application for financial
assistance (the “Application”) to the Agency, which Application requests that the Agency
consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: (A) (1) the
acquisition of an interest in an approximately 1.01 acre parcel of land located at 579 Merrick
Road, Village of Rockville Centre, Town of Hempstead, County of Nassau, New York
(NCTM: Section 38, Block 513, Lot 732) (the “Land” or “Project Site”), (2) the renovation of
an approximately 37,888 square foot building and the construction of an approximately 7,448
square foot addition thereto on the Land (collectively, the “Building”), together with related
improvements to the Project Site, including onsite parking spaces, and (3) the acquisition and
installation therein and thereon of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery, building and
construction materials and equipment (the “Equipment”), all of the foregoing for use by the
Applicant as a senior / disabled multi-family housing-development facility, consisting of
approximately fifty-six (56) affordable rental housing apartments (collectively, the “Project
Facility”); (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section
854(14) of the General Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing in the form of potential
exemptions or partial exemptions from real property taxes, mortgage recording taxes and sales
and use taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to
purchase), license or sale of the Project Facility to the Applicant or such other entity as may be
designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and



WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on June 27, 2024 (the
“Preliminary Inducement Resolution”), the Agency, following a review of the Application,
determined to take preliminary action toward the acquisition and straight leasing of the Project
for the Company and made a determination to proceed with the Project; and

WHEREAS, any approval of the Project is contingent upon, among other things, a final
determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project following
determinations by the Agency that: (A) the public hearing and notice requirements and other
procedural requirements contained in the Act relating to the Project and the Financial Assistance
have been satisfied; and (B) the undertaking of the Project by the Agency and the granting of the
Financial Assistance are and will be in compliance with all other applicable requirements of the
Act, Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto (the “Regulations” and together with the SEQR Act, collectively,
“SEQRA”), and all other statutes, codes, laws, rules and regulations of any governmental
authority having jurisdiction over the Project or the Project Facility (collectively, the “Applicable
Laws”); and

WHEREAS, the CEO/Executive Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public
hearing of the Agency pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act (the “Public Hearing”) to hear all
persons interested in the Project and the Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency with
respect to the Project, to be mailed on November 1, 2024 to the chief executive officer of Nassau
County, New York and of each other affected tax jurisdiction within which the Project Facility is
or is to be located; (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on November 1, 2024
in the Nassau edition of Newsday, a newspaper of general circulation available to residents of the
County of Nassau, New York; (C) caused the Public Hearing to be conducted on November 20,
2024, at 10:30 a.m., local time, at the Rockville Centre Village Hall, 1 College Place, Village of
Rockville Centre, Nassau County, New York, in furtherance of the provisions of Section 859-a
of the General Municipal Law requiring interested parties be provided a reasonable opportunity,
both orally and in writing, to present their views with respect to the Project, (D) caused the
Public Hearing to be streamed on the Agency’s website in real-time and caused a recording of
the Public Hearing to be posted on the Agency’s website, all in accordance with Section 857 of
the Act; and (E) caused a report of the Public Hearing (the “Report™”) to be prepared which
transcribes the views presented at the Public Hearing and distributed the Report to the members
of the Agency; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 874(4) of the Act, (A) the Executive Director of
the Agency caused notice of a meeting of the Agency with respect to the proposed deviation
from the Agency’s uniform tax exemption policy to be mailed on November 1, 2024 (the “IDA
Meeting”) to the chief executive officer of each affected tax jurisdiction and to district clerk of
the applicable school district; and (B) the members of the Agency conducted the IDA Meeting
on the date hereof and reviewed any written comments or correspondence received with respect
to the proposed deviation from the Agency’s uniform tax exemption policy and approved the
proposed deviation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B
of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New



York (the “Regulations”, and collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the appropriate
personnel of the Agency reviewed the environmental assessment form and other materials
submitted by the Applicant and made any necessary comments to the members of the Agency,
and by resolution of the members of the Agency adopted immediately prior to the adoption
hereof, the Agency decided to conduct an uncoordinated review of the Project and determined
that the Project will not have a significant adverse environmental impact and that an
environmental impact statement will not be prepared; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2024-66 adopted on November 21, 2024, (the
“Deviation Resolution”) the Agency determined to deviate from its Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy with respect to the Financial Assistance for the Project and pursuant to Resolution No.
2024-67, adopted on November 21, 2024, (the “Approval Resolution”), the Agency approved the
Project and the provision of the Financial Assistance therefor, and required that the Transaction

Documents be executed in connection therewith within one hundred eighty (180) days from
November 21, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Approval Resolution, the Agency approved, among other things, (i) the
Company, as its agent, to make purchases of goods and services relating to the Project and that
would otherwise be subject to New York State and local sales and use tax in an aggregate
amount of up to $10,882,748.00, which result in New York State and local sales and use tax
exemption benefits not to exceed $938,637.00 (“Original Sales and Use Tax Exemption
Benefits”), and (ii) exemptions from mortgage recording tax (excluding the portion of the
mortgage recording tax allocated to transportation districts referred to in Section 253(2)(a) of the
Tax Law of the State of New York) in an amount not to exceed $82,084.00 (“Original Mortgage
Recording Tax Exemption Benefits”); and

WHEREAS, by letter dated August 18, 2025, the Applicant submitted a supplement to its
Application by which it requested (i) the extension of the time to execute the Transaction
Documents to December 31, 2025, (ii) approval of the Company, as its agent, to make purchases
of goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to New York
State and local sales and use tax in an aggregate amount of up to $11,073,770.40, which result in
New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits not to exceed $955,112.70
(“Amended Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits”), and (iii) exemptions from mortgage
recording tax (excluding the portion of the mortgage recording tax allocated to transportation
districts referred to in Section 253(2)(a) of the Tax Law of the State of New York) in an amount
not to exceed $160,000.00 (the “Amended Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefits”) (the
“2025 Consent™); and

WHEREAS, the Amended Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits represent an increase
in Financial Assistance from Original Sales and Use Tax Exemption Benefits in the amount of
$16,475.70 (the “Additional Sales and Use Tax Financial Assistance”); and

WHEREAS, the Amended Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefits represent an
increase in Financial Assistance from the Original Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefits
in the amount of $77,916.00 (the “Additional Mortgage Recording Tax Financial Assistance”
and, together with the Additional Sales and Use Tax Financial Assistance, the “Additional
Financial Assistance”); and



WHEREAS, the Additional Financial Assistance granted to the Applicant with respect to
the completion of the Project (including the financing thereof) was less than $100,000 and,
therefore, a public hearing of the Agency was not required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2025-57 the Agency granted the 2025 Consent,
ratified its prior determination to proceed with the Project and approved the Additional Financial
Assistance, subject to the terms thereof; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated December 8, 2025, the Applicant submitted a supplement to
its Application by which it requested the extension of the time to execute the Transaction
Documents to February 27, 2026 (the “December 8, 2025 Consent”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2026-07 the Agency granted the December 8,
2025 Consent and ratified its prior determination to proceed with the Project, subject to the terms
thereof; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated February 11, 2026, the Applicant submitted a supplement to
its Application by which it requested the extension of the time to execute the Transaction
Documents to June 30, 2026 (the “Proposed Consent™); and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to grant the Proposed Consent and in all other
respects to ratify its prior determination to proceed with the Project and to grant the Financial
Assistance, subject to the terms hereof; and

WHEREAS, (A) the Applicant will execute and deliver a certain bargain and sale deed,
assignment of lease or company lease to the Agency, pursuant to which the Applicant will
convey an interest in the Land and the Building to the Agency (the “Conveyance Instrument”),
(B) the Applicant will execute and deliver a certain Bill of Sale (the “Bill of Sale to Agency”) to
the Agency, pursuant to which the Applicant will convey to the Agency its interest in the
Equipment, (C) the Applicant will execute and deliver a Lease Agreement or Sublease
Agreement, (the “Lease”) between the Agency and the Applicant, pursuant to which the Agency
will grant to the Applicant a leasehold interest in the Project Facility and pursuant to which
and/or a Project Agreement by and between the Agency and the Applicant, the Agency will
appoint to the Applicant as its agent (“Project Agreement”), (D) the Applicant will cause to be
executed and delivered a certain Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement
(the “Environmental Indemnification”) pursuant to which the Agency will be indemnified from
and against certain losses, costs, damages and liabilities, (E) the Applicant will execute and
deliver or cause to be executed and delivered a certain Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement
(the “PILOT Agreement”) to the Agency, and, to secure the obligations thereunder, a certain
Mortgage and Assignment of Leases and Rents in favor of the County of Nassau, New York
(the “PILOT Mortgage™), and (F) the Applicant will execute and deliver and/or cause to be
executed and delivered certain other certificates, documents, instruments and agreements related
to the Project (together with the Conveyance Instrument, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Lease,
the Project Agreement, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement and the
PILOT Mortgage, collectively, the “Transaction Documents™);



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings given to them in the Approval Resolution.

Section 2. The Agency determines that the Applicant's request with respect to a
previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving
“continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major reordering
of priorities that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(20)) and therefore no
Findings or determination of significance are required under SEQRA.

Section 3. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant
with respect to this request, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant
to Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 4. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore
taken by the Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with
respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without
limitation, (a) those actions required to ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act,
SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project, and (b) the appointment of the
law firm of Harris Beach Murtha Cullina PLLC, Uniondale, New York, as Special Counsel to the
Agency with respect to all matters in connection with the Project.

Section 5. The Agency hereby consents to the Proposed Consent and ratifies and
reaffirms its approval of the Applicant as the lessee/sublessee under the Lease with the Agency
and hereby ratifies and reaffirms its approval of the Applicant as the recipient of the Financial
Assistance.

Section 6. Section 14 of the Approval Resolution is hereby amended to provide “This
Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall expire on June 30, 2026 and is hereby
ratified with the effect of amending the Approval Resolution. All other provisions of the
Approval Resolution, Resolution No. 2025-57 and 2026-07 (except to the extent inconsistent
herewith — which provisions are hereby repealed and superseded) are ratified and reaffirmed and
shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly



STATE OF NEW YORK
) SS.:
COUNTY OF NASSAU

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chairman and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have
compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency,
including the Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof
on file in our office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such
Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the
subject matters therein referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public,
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such
Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this 26" day of February, 2026.

[ Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chairman

(SEAL)



Hardscrabble Apartments Preservation LL.C - Approving Resolution

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”)
was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative Building,
Legislative Chambers, 1% Floor, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York on
February 26, 2026 at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, upon roll being called, the following
members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
Raymond Pinto Secretary / Asst. Treasurer
John Coumatos Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
ABSENT:

THE FOLLOWING PERSONS WERE ALSO PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer

Colleen Pereira Administrative Director

Nicole Gil Administrative Assistant

Anthony Marano Agency Counsel

Andrew D. Komaromi, Esq. Bond/Transactional Counsel

The attached resolution No. 2026- was offered by , seconded

Error! Unknown document property name.



Resolution No. 2026-

RESOLUTION AMENDING AND RATIFYING RESOLUTION NO. No. 2025-
67 AND TAKING FURTHER OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD AND
APPROVING THE ACQUISITION AND STRAIGHT LEASING OF A
CERTAIN PROJECT FOR HARDSCRABBLE APARTMENTS
PRESERVATION LLC

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York,
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the 1975
Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law (said
Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote,
develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving,
maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities,
among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound
commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic
welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living,
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered
under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in
the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed and to
convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and

WHEREAS, Hardscrabble Apartments Preservation LLC, a limited liability company
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, together with entities formed or
to be formed on its behalf, specifically including, but not limited to, Hardscrabble K&R DE LLC,
a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware and
authorized to do business in the State of New York, Hardscrabble Somerset Homes DE LLC, a
limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware and
authorized to do business in the State of New York, and Hardscrabble Livingston Urban DE
LLC, a limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware
and authorized to do business in the State of New York (collectively, the “Applicant”), has
presented an application for financial assistance (the “Application”) to the Agency, which
Application requests that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of
the following: (A)(1) the acquisition of an interest in an approximately 3.097 acre parcel of land
located at 400 Main Street, Village of Farmingdale, Town of Oyster Bay, County of Nassau, New
York (NCTM: Section 49, Block 102, Lot 261) (the “Land” or “Project Site”), (2) the renovation
of an approximately 49,850 square foot building on the Land (collectively, the “Building”),
together with related improvements to the Project Site, including onsite parking spaces, and (3)
the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery,
building and construction materials and equipment (the “Equipment”), all of the foregoing for
use by the Applicant as a senior multi-family housing-development facility, consisting of
approximately eighty (80) affordable rental housing apartments (collectively, the “Project
Facility”); (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section
854(14) of the General Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing in the form of potential



exemptions or partial exemptions from real property taxes, mortgage recording taxes and sales
and use taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to
purchase), license or sale of the Project Facility to the Applicant or such other entity as may be
designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on November 21, 2024
(the “Preliminary Inducement Resolution”), the Agency, following a review of the Application,
determined to take preliminary action toward the acquisition and straight leasing of the Project for
the Company and made a determination to proceed with the Project; and

WHEREAS, any approval of the Project is contingent upon, among other things, a final
determination by the members of the Agency to proceed with the Project following determinations
by the Agency that: (A) the public hearing and notice requirements and other procedural
requirements contained in the Act relating to the Project and the Financial Assistance have been
satisfied; and (B) the undertaking of the Project by the Agency and the granting of the Financial
Assistance are and will be in compliance with all other applicable requirements of the Act, Article
8 of the Environmental Conservation Law (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations adopted pursuant
thereto (the “Regulations” and together with the SEQR Act, collectively, “SEQRA”), and all other
statutes, codes, laws, rules and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over
the Project or the Project Facility (collectively, the “Applicable Laws”); and

WHEREAS, the CEO/Executive Director of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public
hearing of the Agency pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act (the “Public Hearing”) to hear all
persons interested in the Project and the Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency with
respect to the Project, to be mailed on October 3, 2025 to the chief executive officer of the County
of County, New York and of each other affected tax jurisdiction within which the Project Facility
is or is to be located; (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on October 4, 2025
in the Nassau edition of Newsday, a newspaper of general circulation available to residents of the
County of Nassau, New York; (C) caused the Public Hearing to be conducted on October 21, 2025,
at 10:30 a.m., local time, at Village of Farmingdale Village Hall, 361 Main Street, Village of
Farmingdale, Town of Oyster Bay, Nassau County, New York, in furtherance of the provisions of
Section 859-a of the General Municipal Law requiring interested parties be provided a reasonable
opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views with respect to the Project, (D)
caused the Public Hearing to be streamed on the Agency’s website in real-time and caused a
recording of the Public Hearing to be posted on the Agency’s website, all in accordance with
Section 857 of the Act; and (E) caused a report of the Public Hearing (the “Report™) to be prepared
which transcribes the views presented at the Public Hearing and distributed the Report to the
members of the Agency; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 874(4) of the Act, (A) the Executive Director of
the Agency caused notice of a meeting of the Agency with respect to the proposed deviation from
the Agency’s uniform tax exemption policy to be mailed on on October 3, 2025 and October 24,
2025 (the “IDA Meeting”) to the chief executive officer of each affected tax jurisdiction and to
district clerk of the applicable school district; and (B) the members of the Agency conducted the
IDA Meeting on the date hereof and reviewed any written comments or correspondence received
with respect to the proposed deviation from the Agency’s uniform tax exemption policy and
approved the proposed deviation; and



WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B
of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New
York (the “Regulations”, and collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the appropriate
personnel of the Agency reviewed the environmental assessment form and other materials
submitted by the Applicant and made any necessary comments to the members of the Agency, and
by resolution of the members of the Agency adopted immediately prior to the adoption hereof, the
Agency decided to conduct an uncoordinated review of the Project and determined that the Project
will not have a significant adverse environmental impact and that an environmental impact
statement will not be prepared; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2025-66 adopted on October 30, 2025, (the
“Deviation Resolution”) the Agency determined to deviate from its Uniform Tax Exemption
Policy with respect to the Financial Assistance for the Project and pursuant to Resolution No.
2025-67, adopted on October 30, 2025, (the “Approval Resolution”), the Agency approved the
Project and the provision of the Financial Assistance therefor, and required that the Transaction
Documents be executed in connection therewith within one hundred twenty (120) days from
October 30, 2025; and

WHEREAS, by letter dated February 12, 2026, the Applicant submitted a supplement to
its Application by which it requested a ninety (90) day extension of the time to execute the
Transaction Documents (the “Proposed Consent”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to grant the Proposed Consent and in all other
respects to ratify its prior determination to proceed with the Project and to grant the Financial
Assistance, subject to the terms hereof; and

WHEREAS, (A) the Applicant will execute and deliver a certain bargain and sale deed,
assignment of lease or company lease to the Agency, pursuant to which the Applicant will convey
an interest in the Land and the Building to the Agency (the “Conveyance Instrument”), (B) the
Applicant will execute and deliver a certain Bill of Sale (the “Bill of Sale to Agency”) to the
Agency, pursuant to which the Applicant will convey to the Agency its interest in the Equipment,
(C) the Applicant will execute and deliver a Lease Agreement or Sublease Agreement, (the
“Lease”) between the Agency and the Applicant, pursuant to which the Agency will grant to the
Applicant a leasehold interest in the Project Facility and pursuant to which and/or a Project
Agreement by and between the Agency and the Applicant, the Agency will appoint to the
Applicant as its agent (“Project Agreement”), (D) the Applicant will cause to be executed and
delivered a certain Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement (the
“Environmental Indemnification”) pursuant to which the Agency will be indemnified from and
against certain losses, costs, damages and liabilities, (E) the Applicant will execute and deliver or
cause to be executed and delivered a certain Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement (the “PILOT
Agreement”) to the Agency, and, to secure the obligations thereunder, a certain Mortgage and
Assignment of Leases and Rents in favor of the County of Nassau, New York (the “PILOT
Mortgage™), and (F) the Applicant will execute and deliver and/or cause to be executed and
delivered certain other certificates, documents, instruments and agreements related to the Project
(together with the Conveyance Instrument, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Lease, the Project
Agreement, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement and the PILOT Mortgage,
collectively, the “Transaction Documents”);



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings given to them in the Approval Resolution.

Section 2. The Agency determines that the Applicant's request with respect to a
previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving
“continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major reordering of
priorities that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(20)) and therefore no Findings
or determination of significance are required under SEQRA.

Section 3. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with
respect to this request, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant to
Section 859-a of the Act.

Section 4. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore
taken by the Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect
to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation, (a)
those actions required to ensure full compliance with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all
other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project, and (b) the appointment of the law firm of Harris
Beach Murtha Cullina PLLC, Uniondale, New York, as Special Counsel to the Agency with
respect to all matters in connection with the Project.

Section 5. The Agency hereby consents to the Proposed Consent and ratifies and
reaffirms its approval of the Applicant as the lessee/sublessee under the Lease with the Agency
and hereby ratifies and reaffirms its approval of the Applicant as the recipient of the Financial
Assistance.

Section 6. Section 13 of the Approval Resolution is hereby amended to provide “This
Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall expire on May 28, 2026 and is hereby ratified
with the effect of amending the Approval Resolution. All other provisions of the Approval
Resolution and Resolution No. 2025-67 (except to the extent inconsistent herewith — which
provisions are hereby repealed and superseded) are ratified and reaffirmed and shall remain in full
force and effect.

Section 7. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call,
which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly



STATE OF NEW YORK
) SS.:
COUNTY OF NASSAU

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chairman and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have
compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency,
including the Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof
on file in our office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such
Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the
subject matters therein referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public,
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such
Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this 26" day of February, 2026.

[ Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chairman

(SEAL)



Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency™)

Board Meeting Minutes
Janunary 30, 2025

6:45 PM
I Board Roll Call
William Rockensies Present
John Coumatos Present
Reginald Spinello Present
Raymond Pinto ' Present
Marco Troiano Present
Marissa Brown Present
Joseph Manzella Present
Others Present:
Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant
Anthony Marano General Counsel
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel

11, Chair Report

~ None
L. CEO Report
None

v, Public Comment Period

Chair Rockensies invited members of the public to make comments with respect to any items
on the agenda or other Agency business. There were no comments made.

V. Existing Business and Discussion
A. Approval Resolutions
None

B. Preliminary Resolutions

None




C. Discussion

None

D. Consent Resolutions

Chair Rockensies stated that he is not participating in the consideration or approval of the
following consent resolutions to avoid any potential conflicts as per his previously filed
disclosure affidavits. Member Spinello agreed to act as the Acting Chair for these consent

resolutions.

ii.

Engel Burman at Uniondale LLC Consent Resolution

Assignee’s counsel, Peter Curry of Farrell Fritz, P.C., stated that his client,
an affiliate of the Friedkin group, has entered into a contract (subject to IDA
approval) to purchase the property and is seeking the Agency’s consent to
assume the rights and obligations of the assignor under the Agency
documents.

Acting Chair Spinello asked for comments from the board and the public.
There were no comments.

Transaction Counsel Paul O’Brien described the consent resolution.

Motion made by Member Pinto to approve the requesied consent. Member
Brown seconded the motion. The motion was approved by a vote of 6-0
with Chair Rockensies not participating (Resolution No. 2025-01).

Lumber Earth Realty LLC Consent Resolution

Assignor’s counsel, Peter Curry of Farrell Fritz, P.C., stated that his client
has entered into a coniract (subject to IDA approval) to sell the property to
an affiliate of Fairfield Properties and is seeking the Agency’s consent to
assign the rights and obligations of his client under the Agency documents
to such assignee.

Acting Chair Spinello asked for comments from the board and the public.
There were no comments.

Transaction Counsel Paul O’Brien described the consent resolution.
Motion made by Member Manzella to approve the requested consent.

Member Pinto seconded the motion. The motion was approved by a vofe of
6-0 with Chair Rockensies not participating (Resolution No. 2025-02),




VL

VIL

VIIL

IX.

Whereupon Chair Rockensies resumed the chairmanship of the meeting,

New Business
A, Preliminary Resolutions

AR Westbury, LLC

Bram Weber of Weber Law Group, counsel to the Applicant, made a presentation on
behalf of the project. The project would involve the construction of 187 residential
rental units of which 12% would be “affordable units” rented to persons/families at or
below 80% of area median income. Mr. Weber stated that all buildings on the
property are currently vacant and described his client’s outreach to the community and
local legislators,

Chair Rockensies asked for comments and questions from the board and the public.
There were no comments or questions,

Chair Rockensies asked if any members of the board have questions or comments.
There were none. Chair Rockensies asked if any members of the public have any
comments, There were none.

Transaction Counsel Paul O’Brien described the proposed preliminary resolution.

Member Troiano moved to approve the Preliminary Resolution. Member Manzella

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (Resolution No. 2025-
03).

Committee Reports

None

Other Business

A.

Minutes
Approval of December 19, 2024 Minutes
Member Spinello moved to approve the draft December 19, 2024 meeting

minutes. Chair Rockensies seconded the motion. The motion was approved
unanimousiy.

Bills and Comsmunications

None

Treasurer’s Report




Chair Rockensies asked CFO Anne LaMorte to give the December 2024 financial report.

XI. Announcements

None

XII.  Adjournment

A motion to adjourn the board meeting was made by Member Manzella, which was seconded
by Member Troiano. The resolution was approved unanimously. The meeting ended at 7:00
PM.

[For additional information, please see a recording of the January 30, 2025 meeting of the board of
the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency found at:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=btABbM 11Vdw

\U ) ! Wéb’

William Rockensies
Chair

Raﬁﬁoﬂd Pifito - ———
Secretary

--END--



Resolution Authorizing Longevity Payment Pursuant to the Employee Benefits
Handbook

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the
“Agency”) was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive &
Legislative Building, Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau
County, New York, on February 26, 2026, at 6:15 p.m., local time.

The meeting was called to order by the , upon roll being called, the
following members of the Agency were:

PRESENT:
William H. Rockensies Chair
John Coumatos Treasurer
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer
Joseph Manzella Asst. Secretary
Reginald A. Spinello Member
Marco Troiano Member
Ryan Sakowich Member
NOT PRESENT:

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT:

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Anne LaMorte Chief Financial Officer
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel

The attached resolution no. 2026-  was offered by = | seconded by

Doc # 05-1954782.1



Resolution No. 2026 -

RESOLUTION OF THE NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY AUTHORIZING LONGEVITY PAYMENT PURSUANT TO ITS
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS HANDBOOK

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New
York, constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of
the 1975 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General
Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing,
industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting
and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State
of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent
unemployment and economic deterioration; and

WHEREAS, by resolution of the members of the Agency, the Agency adopted an
Employee Benefits Handbook, first effective on or as of October 1, 2010 and subsequently
amended (hereinafter, the “Employee Benefits Handbook™); and

WHEREAS, the Employee Benefits Handbook provides, among other provisions,
that any full-time officer or employee who has attained fifteen (15) years of actual
completed service with the Agency by January 31 of a calendar year shall receive, by
March 31 of such calendar year, a lump sum full-time longevity benefit payment of $1,000
and such longevity benefit payment shall be paid annually thereafter by March 31; and

WHEREAS, the Employee Benefits Handbook further provides that any full-time
officer or employee receiving a longevity payment as provided in the immediately
foregoing WHEREAS clause shall have such payment increased by an additional $110 per
year for each year of actual completed service in excess of fifteen (15) years, with such
aggregate longevity benefit paid annually thereafter as hereinabove indicated; and

WHEREAS, the Agency’s Administrative Director (Colleen Pereira) has attained
not less than twenty (20) years of actual completed service with the Agency by January 31
of the calendar year, and she is also entitled to have such full-time longevity benefit
payment increased by an additional $110 per year for each year of actual completed service
in excess of fifteen (15) years, with such aggregate longevity benefit paid annually
thereafter;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE
NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS:

Doc # 05-1954782.1



Section 1. The Agency hereby determines that the proposed action is a Type II
Action pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law (including
the regulations thereunder, “SEQRA”) involving “continuing agency administration”
which does not involve “new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the
environment” (6 NYCRR Section 617.5(c)(26)) and therefore no findings or determination
of significance are required under SEQRA.

Section 2. The members of the Agency authorize a payment to Ms. Pereira in
the sum of $1,550, as the full-time longevity benefit payment payable on or before March
31, 2025. Furthermore, subject to Ms. Pereira’s continued service as a full-time officer or
employee of the Agency, the members of the Agency authorize future longevity payments
to Ms. Pereira at such times and in such amounts as provided in the Employee Benefits
Handbook.

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly
put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows:

William H. Rockensies VOTING
John Coumatos VOTING
Raymond Pinto VOTING
Reginald A. Spinello VOTING
Marco Troiano VOTING
Joseph Manzella VOTING
Ryan Sakowich VOTING

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

Doc # 05-1954782.1



STATE OF NEW YORK )

COUNTY OF NASSAU )

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County
Industrial Development Agency (the "Agency"), do hereby certify that we have compared the
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the
Resolution contained therein, held on February 26, 2026 with the original thereof on file in our
office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set forth
therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein
referred to.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (the "Open Meetings Law"), said meeting was open to the general public, and due
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open
Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout said
meeting.

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hercof, the attached Resolution is in
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed
the seal of the Agency this day of February, 2026.

[Assistant] Secretary

[Vice] Chair

(SEAL)

Doc #1853445.1



	9252c248-f6e7-57ba-bb21-b550f16e2cac.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	2025.01.30 IDA Meeting Minutes.pdf
	SEQR RESOS (NCIDA_PINETOWN_2026)(1945678.1)-C.pdf
	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_PINETOWN_2026)(1944384.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant is necessary to induce the Applicant to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Applicant as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Applicant and the operation thereof by the Applicant will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of ...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation, (a) those action...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance, subject to the t...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Applicant to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility, and hereby approves the Applicant as the recipient of the Financial As...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to prior projects, together with such changes as the Chair, the Vice Chair or the ...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and to do such further things or perform such a...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.

	SEQR RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954576.1)-C.pdf
	[Vice] Chair

	TAX DEVIATION RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954216.1)-C.pdf
	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954215.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company is necessary to induce the Company to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Company as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Company and the operation thereof by the Company will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Co...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation,...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing, the IDA Meeting or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance,...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Company as the lessee/sublessee under the Project Agreement, authorizes the Company to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Faci...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Mortgage and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to pri...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things or perform such act...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.
	[Vice] Chair

	20260209_350_Broadway_Hicksville_LLC_Tax_Deviation_Notice_with_Certified_Mail_Reciepts.pdf

	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954215.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company is necessary to induce the Company to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Company as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Company and the operation thereof by the Company will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Co...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation,...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing, the IDA Meeting or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance,...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Company as the lessee/sublessee under the Project Agreement, authorizes the Company to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Faci...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Mortgage and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to pri...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things or perform such act...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.
	[Vice] Chair

	SEQR RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1928980.1)-C.pdf
	TAX DEVIATION RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1945548.1)-C with Attachments.pdf
	TAX DEVIATION RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1945548.1)-C.pdf
	2026.02.04_The_Bridge_Tax_Deviation_Notice_with_certified_receipt.pdf

	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1945478.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant is necessary to induce the Applicant to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Applicant as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Applicant and the operation thereof by the Applicant will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of ...
	(e) the Project will not result in the removal or abandonment of a plant or facility of the Applicant, or of a proposed user, occupant or tenant of the Project Facility, currently located within Nassau County;
	(f) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(g) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(h) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(i) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...
	(j) there is a lack of safe, clean, affordable, modern condominium housing in the County of Nassau (the “County”); and
	(k) such lack of safe, clean, affordable, modern housing has resulted in residents leaving the County, thereby adversely affecting businesses, retailers, banks, financial institutions, insurance companies, health and legal services providers and other...
	(l) the Project Facility, by providing such housing will enable persons to remain in the County and thereby to support the businesses, retailers, banks, and other financial institutions, insurance companies, health care and legal services providers an...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation,...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing, the IDA Meeting or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance,...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Applicant as the lessee/sublessee under the Project Agreement, authorizes the Applicant to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project ...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Conveyance Instrument, the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Conveyance Instrument, the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Mortgage, the Conversion Agreement and the other Transaction Documents...
	Section 8. The Acting Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives (as d...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Acting Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and to do such further things or perform such acts as ma...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for ninety (90) days from the date of its adoption.


	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_LUNAR_TAX CERT)(1954203.1)-C.pdf
	Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent a...

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_CSH PLAINVIEW_ASGNT)(1953904.1)-C.pdf
	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_115 GLEN_CLOSING DATE EXT)(1953819.1)-C.pdf
	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_AGILANT_SETTLEMENT)(1954211.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Lease.
	Section 2. The Agency determines that the Applicant’s requests with respect to a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New Y...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Settlement Proposal, including, without limitation, (a) those actions required to ...
	Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with respect to the Settlement Proposal.  Therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.
	Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Settlement Proposal.
	Section 6.  The Agency hereby consents to the Settlement Proposal.  The Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized to prepare, negotiate, execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents, instrum...
	Section 7. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Settlement Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent ...
	Section 8. The Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives (as defined...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of th...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of...
	Section 11. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the condition that the Applicant, the Overlandlord or the Guarantor shall reimburse the Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with the transac...
	Section 12. The Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or conve...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for ninety (90) days from the date of its adoption.

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_14 PARK_CHANGE OWNER)(1954213.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Lease Agreement.
	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions r...
	Section 3. The Agency determines that the request for consent with respect to a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving “continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major ...
	Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with respect to the Transfer Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.
	Section 5. The Agency has considered the request made by the Applicant and hereby finds and determines that the requested consent will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, ...
	Section 6. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Transfer Transaction.
	Section 7. The Agency hereby consents to the terms of the Transfer Transaction as set forth in the Consent Request, subject to the provisions of this Resolution.
	Section 8. The execution and delivery of the documents, instruments and agreements required to effectuate the Transfer Transaction (collectively, the “Amendment Documents”), being substantially in the forms used for prior similar transactions, are her...
	Section 9. The Acting Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby designated an Authorized Representative of the Agency and each of them is hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or ...
	Section 10. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the conditions that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent and amendment fee in the amount of $6,000 and shall reimburse the Agency for all actual costs and expenses incu...
	Section 11. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution, the Amendment Documents and the Consent Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agen...
	Section 12. The Chair and CEO/Executive Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized to approve modifications to the terms approved herein which are not inconsistent with the intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced ...
	Section 13. Notwithstanding any provision in the Lease Agreement or any other Transaction Document to the contrary, the Agency’s consent does not and shall not be construed to mean that there are no defaults or events of default under the Lease Agreem...
	Section 14. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as ...
	Section 15. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	NCIDA - Rockville Manor - Consent Resolution - 2-26-2026 (4897-6864-4496 1).pdf
	NCIDA - Hardscrabble - Consent Resolution - 2-26-2026 (4900-0969-3840 1).pdf
	AGENCY RESOS (NCIDA_2026 CP LONGEVITY PAYMENT)(1954782.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. The Agency hereby determines that the proposed action is a Type II Action pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law (including the regulations thereunder, “SEQRA”) involving “continuing agency administration” whic...
	Section 2. The members of the Agency authorize a payment to Ms. Pereira in the sum of $1,550, as the full-time longevity benefit payment payable on or before March 31, 2025.  Furthermore, subject to Ms. Pereira’s continued service as a full-time offic...
	Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_PINETOWN_2026)(1944384.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant is necessary to induce the Applicant to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Applicant as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Applicant and the operation thereof by the Applicant will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of ...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation, (a) those action...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance, subject to the t...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Applicant to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility, and hereby approves the Applicant as the recipient of the Financial As...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to prior projects, together with such changes as the Chair, the Vice Chair or the ...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and to do such further things or perform such a...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_101 CHANNEL_CHANGE USE)(1954205.2)-C.pdf
	Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent a...


	9252c248-f6e7-57ba-bb21-b550f16e2cac.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	2025.01.30 IDA Meeting Minutes.pdf
	SEQR RESOS (NCIDA_PINETOWN_2026)(1945678.1)-C.pdf
	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_PINETOWN_2026)(1944384.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant is necessary to induce the Applicant to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Applicant as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Applicant and the operation thereof by the Applicant will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of ...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation, (a) those action...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance, subject to the t...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Applicant to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility, and hereby approves the Applicant as the recipient of the Financial As...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to prior projects, together with such changes as the Chair, the Vice Chair or the ...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and to do such further things or perform such a...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.

	SEQR RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954576.1)-C.pdf
	[Vice] Chair

	TAX DEVIATION RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954216.1)-C.pdf
	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954215.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company is necessary to induce the Company to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Company as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Company and the operation thereof by the Company will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Co...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation,...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing, the IDA Meeting or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance,...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Company as the lessee/sublessee under the Project Agreement, authorizes the Company to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Faci...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Mortgage and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to pri...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things or perform such act...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.
	[Vice] Chair

	20260209_350_Broadway_Hicksville_LLC_Tax_Deviation_Notice_with_Certified_Mail_Reciepts.pdf

	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_350 BROADWAY)(1954215.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company is necessary to induce the Company to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Company;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Company as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Company and the operation thereof by the Company will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Co...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation,...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing, the IDA Meeting or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance,...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Company as the lessee/sublessee under the Project Agreement, authorizes the Company to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Faci...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Mortgage and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to pri...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to do such further things or perform such act...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.
	[Vice] Chair

	SEQR RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1928980.1)-C.pdf
	TAX DEVIATION RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1945548.1)-C with Attachments.pdf
	TAX DEVIATION RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1945548.1)-C.pdf
	2026.02.04_The_Bridge_Tax_Deviation_Notice_with_certified_receipt.pdf

	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_BRIDGE)(1945478.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant is necessary to induce the Applicant to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Applicant as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Applicant and the operation thereof by the Applicant will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of ...
	(e) the Project will not result in the removal or abandonment of a plant or facility of the Applicant, or of a proposed user, occupant or tenant of the Project Facility, currently located within Nassau County;
	(f) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(g) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(h) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(i) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...
	(j) there is a lack of safe, clean, affordable, modern condominium housing in the County of Nassau (the “County”); and
	(k) such lack of safe, clean, affordable, modern housing has resulted in residents leaving the County, thereby adversely affecting businesses, retailers, banks, financial institutions, insurance companies, health and legal services providers and other...
	(l) the Project Facility, by providing such housing will enable persons to remain in the County and thereby to support the businesses, retailers, banks, and other financial institutions, insurance companies, health care and legal services providers an...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application, the IDA Meeting and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation,...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing, the IDA Meeting or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance,...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Applicant as the lessee/sublessee under the Project Agreement, authorizes the Applicant to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project ...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Conveyance Instrument, the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Conveyance Instrument, the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency, the Environmental Indemnification, the PILOT Agreement, the PILOT Mortgage, the Conversion Agreement and the other Transaction Documents...
	Section 8. The Acting Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives (as d...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Acting Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and to do such further things or perform such acts as ma...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for ninety (90) days from the date of its adoption.


	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_LUNAR_TAX CERT)(1954203.1)-C.pdf
	Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent a...

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_CSH PLAINVIEW_ASGNT)(1953904.1)-C.pdf
	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_115 GLEN_CLOSING DATE EXT)(1953819.1)-C.pdf
	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_AGILANT_SETTLEMENT)(1954211.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Lease.
	Section 2. The Agency determines that the Applicant’s requests with respect to a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New Y...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Settlement Proposal, including, without limitation, (a) those actions required to ...
	Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with respect to the Settlement Proposal.  Therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.
	Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Settlement Proposal.
	Section 6.  The Agency hereby consents to the Settlement Proposal.  The Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized to prepare, negotiate, execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents, instrum...
	Section 7. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Settlement Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent ...
	Section 8. The Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representatives (as defined...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of th...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of...
	Section 11. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the condition that the Applicant, the Overlandlord or the Guarantor shall reimburse the Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with the transac...
	Section 12. The Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution and to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or conve...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for ninety (90) days from the date of its adoption.

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_14 PARK_CHANGE OWNER)(1954213.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Lease Agreement.
	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions r...
	Section 3. The Agency determines that the request for consent with respect to a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving “continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major ...
	Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with respect to the Transfer Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.
	Section 5. The Agency has considered the request made by the Applicant and hereby finds and determines that the requested consent will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, ...
	Section 6. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Transfer Transaction.
	Section 7. The Agency hereby consents to the terms of the Transfer Transaction as set forth in the Consent Request, subject to the provisions of this Resolution.
	Section 8. The execution and delivery of the documents, instruments and agreements required to effectuate the Transfer Transaction (collectively, the “Amendment Documents”), being substantially in the forms used for prior similar transactions, are her...
	Section 9. The Acting Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby designated an Authorized Representative of the Agency and each of them is hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or ...
	Section 10. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the conditions that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent and amendment fee in the amount of $6,000 and shall reimburse the Agency for all actual costs and expenses incu...
	Section 11. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution, the Amendment Documents and the Consent Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agen...
	Section 12. The Chair and CEO/Executive Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized to approve modifications to the terms approved herein which are not inconsistent with the intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced ...
	Section 13. Notwithstanding any provision in the Lease Agreement or any other Transaction Document to the contrary, the Agency’s consent does not and shall not be construed to mean that there are no defaults or events of default under the Lease Agreem...
	Section 14. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as ...
	Section 15. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	NCIDA - Rockville Manor - Consent Resolution - 2-26-2026 (4897-6864-4496 1).pdf
	NCIDA - Hardscrabble - Consent Resolution - 2-26-2026 (4900-0969-3840 1).pdf
	AGENCY RESOS (NCIDA_2026 CP LONGEVITY PAYMENT)(1954782.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. The Agency hereby determines that the proposed action is a Type II Action pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law (including the regulations thereunder, “SEQRA”) involving “continuing agency administration” whic...
	Section 2. The members of the Agency authorize a payment to Ms. Pereira in the sum of $1,550, as the full-time longevity benefit payment payable on or before March 31, 2025.  Furthermore, subject to Ms. Pereira’s continued service as a full-time offic...
	Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	INDUCE_APPROVE RESOS (NCIDA_PINETOWN_2026)(1944384.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. In accordance with Section 859-a of the Act, the Agency has caused to be prepared a written cost-benefit analysis with respect to the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance (the “Analysis”).  The Agency has reviewed the Applic...
	(a) based on the proposed use of the Project Facility as set forth in the Application, the economic effects of the Project on the area in which it is situated including the prevention of economic deterioration, the job opportunities to be created and/...
	(b) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant is necessary to induce the Applicant to proceed with the Project;
	(c) there is a likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency to the Applicant;
	(d) the completion of the Project Facility by the Applicant as agent of the Agency, the granting of an interest therein by the Agency to the Applicant and the operation thereof by the Applicant will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of ...
	(e) the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving permanent, private sector jobs and increasing the overall number of permanent, private sector jobs in the State;
	(f) no funds of the Agency shall be used in connection with the Project for the purpose of preventing the establishment of an industrial or manufacturing plant, nor shall any funds of the Agency be given in connection with the Project to any group or ...
	(g) the granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project will promote the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York and the State, will improve their ...
	(h) the Project Facility does not and will not constitute a project where facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally visit such facilities constitute more than one-third o...

	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the Application and the Public Hearing, including, without limitation, (a) those action...
	Section 3. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Project.
	Section 4. Having considered fully all comments received at the Public Hearing or otherwise in connection with the Project, the Agency hereby further determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance, subject to the t...
	Section 5. The Agency hereby approves the Applicant to act as its agent for purposes of undertaking the acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility, and hereby approves the Applicant as the recipient of the Financial As...
	Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to (a) acquire an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, (b) grant an interest in the Project Facility pursuant to the Project Agreement a...
	Section 7. The form and substance of the Project Agreement, the Bill of Sale to Agency and the other Transaction Documents, in the forms used by the Agency with respect to prior projects, together with such changes as the Chair, the Vice Chair or the ...
	Section 8. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, acting together or individually, to designate any additional Authorized Representati...
	Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the provisions of the...
	Section 10. The Agency recognizes that due to the complexities of the proposed transaction it may become necessary that certain of the terms approved hereby may require modifications from time to time which will not affect the intent and substance of ...
	Section 11. The members of the Agency acknowledge the terms and conditions of Section 875(3) of the Act and the duties and obligations of the Agency thereunder with respect to granting of State Sales and Use Taxes (as such term is defined in Section 8...
	Section 12. The Chair, the Vice Chair, the CEO/Executive Director and the Administrative Director of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and to do such further things or perform such a...
	Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall be effective for sixty (60) days from the date of its adoption.

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_101 CHANNEL_CHANGE USE)(1954205.2)-C.pdf
	Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent a...



